

Advisory Committee to the Court Appointed Special Advocate and Children's Justice Act Programs Meeting virtually via Webex

JOIN WEBEX MEETING

 $\underline{https://covaconf.webex.com/covaconf/j.php?MTID=mc2b2d11a3bd8a34281f4bfb6c5dbda09}$

Meeting number (access code): 171 103 5088 Meeting password: vdRxxR83Mh3 JOIN BY PHONE +1-517-466-2023 US Toll +1-866-692-4530 US Toll Free

AGENDA

October 30, 2020

- 1. Call to Order and Roll Call
- 2. Approval of Past Minutes
- 3. Elections of Officers
- 4. CASA Program Update
 - a. Regulatory Review Process
 - b. National CASA/GAL Association Highly Effective Standards Review Process for State Organizations
 - c. CASA Program Monitoring and Quality Assurance Update
- 5. CJA Program Update
 - a. Three Year Plan Recommendations Discussion
- 6. Citizen Review Panel Shannon Hartung-Virginia Department of Social Services
- 7. New Business
- 8. Adjournment

DRAFT

Pursuant to § 2.2-3707.1 of the Code of Virginia this DRAFT of the minutes of the Court Appointed Special Advocate (CASA) and Children's Justice Act (CJA) Advisory Committee is available to the public. The public is cautioned that the information is provided in DRAFT form and is subject to change by the Advisory Committee prior to becoming final. Once the minutes have been finalized, they will be marked "FINAL" and made available to the public.

COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATE/CHILDREN'S JUSTICE ACT PROGRAM ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

July 31, 2020

A meeting of the Advisory Committee to the Court Appointed Special Advocate and Children's Justice Act programs was held on July 31, 2020. As a result of the state of emergency declared by Governor Northam due to COVID-19, the Advisory Committee conducted this meeting by electronic communication means without a quorum of the Committee physically assembled at one location. However, a quorum was present virtually.

Molly Dellinger-Wray Shardell Gerald Allison Gilbreath Shannon Hartung Judge Jerrauld Jones Sandy Karison Malcolm King Alicia Lenahan Jennifer Newman Giselle Pelaez Pat Popp, Chair

Judge Thomas Sotelo Ashley Thompson

Members Present

Members Not Present Robin Foster

Staff Present
Jenna Foster (DCJS)
Melissa O'Neill (DCJS)
Terry Willie-Surratt (DCJS)

Guest

Chase Whittaker (University of Richmond Law Student Intern)

- I. **Call to Order:** Pat Popp, Committee Chair, called the meeting to order at 10:07 AM. A verbal roll call was taken.
- II. Approval of Minutes: The committee received and reviewed the draft minutes of the January 31, 2020 meeting. Alicia Lenahan made a motion to approve the January 31, 2020 minutes. Molly Dellinger-Wray provided a second and Giselle Pelaez abstained. Motion was approved by verbal roll call vote.
- III. Recognition of Advisory Committee Member Service Melissa O'Neill recognized three members whose terms of service on the Advisory Committee have ended. Hum Cardounel, Julia Fuller-Wilson, and Robin Morgan will each receive a certificate of appreciation. The Department of Criminal Justice Services is grateful to each for their commitment, dedication and service to the Committee.
- IV. **Set Meeting Dates for Next Year** The Advisory Committee agreed to meet on the following dates for the next year:

October 30, 2020 January 29, 2021 April 30, 2021 July 30, 2021

- V. **By-laws Approval** The Advisory Committee received a copy of the proposed changes to the by-laws in advance of the meeting for approval. Jennifer Newman made a motion to approve the by-laws as presented, and Malcolm King provided a second. After a brief discussion, the motion was approved by a verbal roll call vote.
- VI. **CASA Program Update** The committee was previously provided a written update regarding the Court Appointed Special Advocate Program. Melissa O'Neill provided information on the CASA programs' response during the pandemic. CASA volunteers continue to serve children through virtual and sidewalk visits and CASA programs quickly adapted training from in-person to virtual platforms. DCJS moved to virtual grant monitoring and will meet all requirements for site visits by the end of the calendar year.

The Advisory Committee engaged in a discussion on the role of CASA volunteers in collaborative team meetings with system partners. The discussion focused on the importance of the independence of CASA volunteers and the limitations of restrictions on confidentiality and information sharing.

VII. **Children's Justice Act Program Update** - The committee was previously provided a written update regarding the Children's Justice Act Program. Jenna Foster highlighted areas of interest.

The Advisory Committee engaged in a discussion regarding training delivery during and after the pandemic. Members were provided a list of questions in advance of the meeting to assist DCJS in consideration of alternative methods of training delivery.

VIII. **Child Protective Services/Citizen Review Panel** – Shannon Hartung, Child Protective Services Program Manager, Virginia Department of Social Services, provided an

overview of the Department of Social Services response during the pandemic. Members were also given an overview of the Citizen Review Panel recommendations for the next year.

- IX. **New Business** Due to the cancelation of the April meeting, the committee was unable to appoint a nominations committee for the appointment of new officers. Shardell Gerald and Pat Popp agreed to serve in this capacity.
- X. **Adjourn** Meeting adjourned at 12:22 PM.

Next meeting dates:

October 30, 2020 January 29, 2021 April 30, 2021 July 30, 2021

CASA/CJA Advisory Committee Meeting

October 30, 2020 10 a.m. – 12 p.m.

REPORT: Court Appointed Special Advocate (CASA) Programs

Prepared by: Melissa O'Neill, CASA Coordinator - DCJS

I. CASA Operations During COVID Pandemic

During the COVID crisis, DCJS continues to provide leadership and support to the CASA program network to assist in navigating this unprecedented time. DCJS facilitated five COVID Network Support meetings using virtual technology during this past quarter. Meeting agendas include topics to assist programs with navigating program operations and management. Meetings are held every three weeks.

CASA programs have continued to serve the cases while providing guidance and policies to best protect the health and safety of volunteers and staff despite the challenges of the pandemic. Local practices vary. Some CASA volunteers are using technology to virtually visit assigned children and many report increasing contacts during this time. Some CASA volunteers are engaging in "sidewalk" visits if feasible to maintain contact with their child. CASA programs are using technology for pre-service training and many courts are using video and teleconferencing for hearings. Some courts have returned to in-person hearings and CASA programs are attempting to navigate balancing volunteer safety practices while achieving expectations of the court's appointment of a CASA volunteer.

A review of the data provided by Virginia's 27 local CASA programs to DCJS reveals that there was an overall decline in new appointments to cases, presumably as a result of response to the pandemic. In FY20, each the first three quarters averaged 506 new cases statewide. In the final quarter of FY20, April - June, 2020, new appointments decreased by 25% to 379. The overall number of children served for FY20 reduced by 7% from the FY19 numbers.

II. DCJS CASA Grant Program Virtual Compliance Monitoring Enhanced Programmatic Desk Review for Remote Site Visits

CASA programs continued to receive virtual compliance monitoring site visits. DCJS anticipates all CASA programs will have received a site visits over the last two years by the end of this calendar year.

III. State Leadership Team Updates

The State Leadership Team continues to meet and is working to achieve stated goals despite the challenges of the pandemic.

1. Data Committee

DCJS facilitated a CASA Manager Workgroup to develop a Virginia CASA Manager Practice Guide.

2. Training Committee

DCJS facilitated meetings for the Training Committee to update the Pre-Service Training to adapt to the Virginia Case Studies Curriculum. Additionally, the Training Committee is working to relaunch the training plan given the challenges of the pandemic. The CASA College launch for volunteers was postponed from the summer to the fall. Volunteers will be welcomed as "CASA College" participants and invited to future training events.

CASA/CJA Advisory Committee Meeting

October 30, 2020, 10 a.m. - 12 p.m.

REPORT: Children's Justice Act (CJA)

Prepared by: Jenna L. Foster, Children's Justice Act Coordinator - DCJS

I. CHILD DEATH INVESTIGATION PROTOCOL TRAINING

A formal survey regarding the continuation of the protocol training in a virtual format was sent to all Stakeholder Group members and the 300+ registered participants that were originally signed up to attend the in-person training. The DCJS Research Center is analyzing the responses. A formal training plan will be scheduled, likely for early 2021.

II. Children's Programming Survey within DV/SV services

The Juvenile and Child Welfare Section at DCJS collected information to identify gaps and challenges in services for children serviced by Domestic Violence/Sexual Violence (DV/SV) programs in September. All grant funded DV/SV programs were requested to respond to a survey regarding their children's programming, if applicable. We were looking for children's services or programs that are currently available across the Commonwealth and requested input from a grantee perspective. This data will be used to identify gaps and challenges within services that may be able to be filled under the CJA guidelines.

III. DIVERSITY, EQUITY AND INCLUSION (DEI) TRAINING

CJA is partnering with the Racial and Ethnic Disparity (RED) Coordinator at DCJS to facilitate DEI training for child welfare staff. We anticipate the specific focus of the training to be:

- Forensic interviewing using a DEI lens
- Addressing one's own level of comfort with DEI (to include implicit bias)
- Organizational temperature check related to DEI

The results of the DV/SV children's programming survey will help inform this training. Training is anticipated for early 2021.



Regulations Relating to the Court-Appointed Special Advocate Program



Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 1100 Bank Street Richmond, Virginia 23219 804-786-6428

Virginia Administrative Code

Effective Date – October 29, 2008

CHAPTER 160 REGULATIONS RELATING TO THE COURT-APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATE PROGRAM (CASA)

PART I: General Definitions

6VAC20-160-10. Definitions.

The following words and terms when used in this chapter shall apply unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

- "Advisory council" means a locally appointed body with a specific purpose to advise the governing board of a local CASA program.
- "CASA" means court-appointed special advocate.
- "CASA program" means any locally operated court-appointed special advocate program which utilizes court-appointed volunteers to assist in judicial proceedings involving allegations that a child is abused, neglected, in need of services, or in need of supervision and for whom a Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Court judge determines such services are appropriate.
- "Case" means a child for whom a Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Court judge has entered an order of appointment for a CASA volunteer.
- "DCJS" means the Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services.
- "Director" means the director or coordinator of a local CASA program responsible for the day-to-day operations of the local CASA program.
- "Governing board" means the oversight body responsible for the local CASA program. This may be a city council, county board of supervisors or the board of directors of a nonprofit organization.
- "Staff advocate" means an employee of the CASA program who serves, in lieu of a CASA volunteer, as the assigned advocate for a case.
- "Volunteer" means a court-appointed special advocate.

PART II: Program Administration

6VAC20-160-20. CASA program governance.

- A. A CASA program shall have a governing board responsible for overseeing the program's operations.
- B. A governing board may choose to establish an advisory council to support the CASA program operations. The governing board shall articulate in writing a clearly defined purpose for the advisory council, criteria for selection of members, a defined relationship between the council and the CASA program staff and a clear process for reporting to the governing board.
- C. If the governing board is not a city council or county board of supervisors, the composition of a local CASA governing board and any established advisory council should include representatives of each geographic area served by the program. Members should represent diverse cultures, professional disciplines, public and private sectors, and have knowledge of or an interest in matters including, but not limited to, the courts, child welfare and juvenile justice.
- D. All new governing board members and advisory council members shall receive an orientation within six months of their selection. The orientation shall include education about Virginia's CASA programs' mission, goals and objectives with emphasis on governing board member and advisory council roles, fiduciary responsibilities and fundraising.

6VAC20-160-30. Recordkeeping and monitoring.

- A. CASA programs shall maintain records of the activities of the CASA program by using an automated data system prescribed by DCJS.
- B. CASA programs shall provide annual and other reports on the operation of the CASA program to DCJS in a format prescribed by DCJS according to a timeline established by DCJS.

6VAC20-160-40. Program and personnel policies.

- A. CASA programs shall be in compliance with Standards for National CASA Association (NCASAA) Member Programs.
- B. CASA programs shall ensure that an attorney is available for CASA directors and governing boards to provide legal consultation in matters pertaining to administration of the programs.
- C. CASA program employees shall not concurrently supervise children in need of services, children in need of supervision, or juvenile offender cases, either for the courts or any child serving agencies.

- D. CASA programs shall write policies on the following and make those written policies available to the respective courts:
 - 1. The maximum caseload to which a volunteer may be assigned at any one time. If that number is larger than two children or two sibling groups, a rationale must be submitted to and approved by DCJS.
 - 2. Assignment of CASA staff as an advocate. In the event a CASA supervisor or staff member is required to serve as an advocate, that staff member will serve no more than two children or two sibling groups. If that number is larger than two children or two sibling groups, a rationale must be submitted to and approved by DCJS.
 - 3. The maximum number of volunteers to be supervised by each staff person. The staff-to-volunteer ratio calculated and reported each quarter shall not exceed one full-time equivalent staff to 30 volunteers who are assigned to active cases. This ratio is reduced according to the number of hours the volunteer supervisor may be assigned to administrative or other responsibilities. A request shall be submitted to DCJS for approval should that ratio exceed 1:30.
 - 4. The review, investigation and handling of any complaints that may be received concerning CASA volunteers, including procedures for the removal of CASA volunteers should dismissal become necessary.
 - 5. The specific factors to be used by the CASA program to accept and prioritize cases for assignment to CASA volunteers.
 - 6. The confidentiality of the records and information to which CASA volunteers will have access, and training volunteers on the importance of confidentiality.
 - 7. The objectives, standards, and conduct for CASA volunteers and the procedures that the CASA program will use to evaluate the performance of its volunteers in order to ensure that volunteers are meeting CASA's objectives and standards of conduct.
 - 8. The CASA volunteers' responsibility to report incidents of suspected child abuse and neglect.
 - 9. Concerning CASA investigations, CASA's role and responsibility in assisting the guardian ad litem, and monitoring court order compliance.
 - 10. Compliance with federal laws, including Equal Opportunity Employment, Drug-Free Workplace, Smoke-Free Workplace, and political activity statements.
- E. CASA programs shall employ staff capable of managing effective and efficient program operations. The following job descriptions provide for essential CASA program management:
 - 1. **Director.** The director is responsible for accomplishing organizational goals and all managerial functions. This staff position requires a degree or equivalent experience in child welfare, public administration, counseling, human services, juvenile justice or law. The person should have an understanding of and experience with community organization and volunteer program management. Generally the duties and responsibilities of the director are as follows:

- a. Conduct or oversee the recruitment, screening, training, supervision and evaluation of the program volunteers and staff;
- b. Develop and maintain procedures for case recordkeeping; supervise staff and volunteers in completing recordkeeping tasks;
- c. Serve as a liaison to the court, the local governing board, and if applicable, advisory council, to local agencies serving children, to DCJS, to the Virginia CASA Network, and to the National CASA Association:
- d. Plan for and manage program growth, development and evaluation, including special projects, budgets, annual workplans, and analysis of trends in program services;
- e. Represent the program to networks of service providers and community coalitions dealing with child welfare issues; and
- f. Supervise program operations including financial management, risk management, and resource development.
- 2. **Program/Volunteer Coordinator.** Depending on program size, it may be necessary to designate a staff person having knowledge of, or willingness to learn about, court matters, child welfare and juvenile justice issues who will focus on volunteer recruitment, screening, training, case assignment, and supervision. Generally, the duties and responsibilities of the program/volunteer coordinator are as follows:
 - a. Develop and distribute volunteer recruitment materials, and conduct presentations on the CASA program for the purpose of recruiting volunteers and increasing community awareness;
 - b. Screen volunteer applications and conduct interviews to determine the suitability of the applicant for the CASA program;
 - c. Arrange training for CASA volunteers;
 - d. Recommend trained volunteers for acceptance into the CASA program;
 - e. Assign cases and supervise volunteers;
 - f. Plan and implement volunteer recognition events;
 - g. Evaluate effectiveness of volunteer recruitment, training, and case assignment; and
 - h. Conduct annual written evaluations of each CASA volunteer.
- F. CASA programs are responsible for disseminating CASA reports according to § 16.1-274 of the *Code of Virginia*.

Part III: Volunteer Administration

6VAC20-160-50. Case assignment.

- A. The CASA director shall be responsible for all decisions pertaining to the assignment or removal of specific volunteers to specific cases.
- B. A CASA volunteer shall not be assigned to a case involving any professional connection or close personal relationship with the child client or family.

6VAC20-160-60. CASA volunteer duties and responsibilities.

- A. Volunteers shall follow specific policies regarding the nature of assistance:
 - 1. Provided to the guardian ad litem;
 - 2. Relating to their investigative role;
 - 3. Relating to monitoring compliance with court orders; and
 - 4. Relating to the submission to the court of written reports.
- B. The CASA volunteer's investigation involves fact-finding via interviews, professional reports, observation of family and social interactions, and observation of the child's environment.
- C. The CASA volunteer's investigation involves the observation of the child's circumstances. CASA volunteers may conduct interviews of children; however, CASA volunteers are specifically prohibited from questioning or inquiring of the child information regarding a precipitating incident or allegation involving child abuse and neglect.
- D. The CASA volunteer should encourage interdisciplinary coordination and cooperation, whenever possible, in an effort to develop a plan of action in conjunction with other local agencies and professionals.

6VAC20-160-70. Confidentiality.

- A. All CASA volunteers shall follow specific policies regarding the following:
 - 1. Reporting suspected child abuse and neglect, and the procedure for making such reports;
 - 2. Confidentiality of records and information; and
 - 3. Contacting, interviewing and responding to persons involved in the case.
- B. To the extent permitted by state and federal confidentiality laws, CASA volunteers should share information gathered with other involved professionals whenever possible and practicable.

6VAC20-160-80. Code of ethics.

- A. CASA volunteers should conduct themselves in a professional manner, adhering to a code of ethics that is consistent with ethical principles established by local, state or national guidelines.
- B. CASA volunteers should not become inappropriately involved in the case by providing direct service delivery to any parties that could (i) lead to conflict of interest or liability or (ii) cause a child or family to become dependent on the CASA volunteer for services that should be provided by other agencies or organizations.

Part IV: Qualifications of Volunteers

6VAC20-160-90. Qualifications.

- A. CASA volunteers shall be at least 21 years of age.
- B. CASA volunteers shall have the ability to communicate effectively, both orally and in writing, to prepare court reports and to provide testimony.
- C. CASA volunteers shall possess mature judgment, a high degree of responsibility and sufficient time to assist in advocating for the best interests of the child.
- D. CASA volunteers shall be able to relate to persons of different cultures, ethnic backgrounds and socioeconomic status.

6VAC20-160-100. Screening.

- A. Prior to being sworn in, CASA volunteers shall successfully complete screening procedures, which, at a minimum, shall include a written application and personal interview.
- B. Pursuant to § 9.1-153 of the *Code of Virginia*, the director shall obtain, with the approval of the court, a copy of each applicant's criminal history record or certification that no conviction data is maintained on him, in accordance with § 19.2-389 of *the Code of Virginia*; a copy of information from the central registry, maintained pursuant to § 63.2-1515 of the *Code of Virginia*, on any investigation of child abuse or neglect undertaken on him or certification that no such record is maintained on him. If the volunteer applicant has lived in another state within the past five years, the CASA program director shall also obtain a copy of his criminal history record and a copy of information from the central registry from that area. An applicant shall be rejected if he refuses to sign a release of information for appropriate law-enforcement checks.

- C. The CASA program shall contact and obtain a response from three references provided by the CASA volunteer. References will speak to the character, judgment and suitability for the position of CASA volunteer.
- D. Before the volunteer is sworn in, the director shall determine that the CASA volunteer is qualified under 6VAC20-160-90 and 6VAC20-160-120.
- E. CASA volunteers shall successfully complete required training as set forth in 6VAC20-160-120.

6VAC20-160-110. [Redesignated]

Part V: Training Guidelines for Volunteers

6VAC20-160-120. Training.

- A. To ensure that volunteers are fully prepared to perform their role as a CASA volunteer and to assume the accompanying responsibilities, each volunteer shall participate in a minimum of 30 hours of training prior to being accepted as a CASA volunteer and assigned cases. Credit may be given towards the 30 hours of training for any previous training obtained by a volunteer prior to application to a local CASA program if that program uses the NCASAA Training Curriculum and documentation of completion of the training is provided.
- B. The initial training curriculum for a CASA volunteer should, at a minimum, include:
 - 1. The delineation of the roles and responsibilities of a CASA volunteer focusing on the rationale for family preservation/permanency planning, discussion of the basic principles of advocacy, distinction between the appropriate and inappropriate activities for a CASA volunteer, level of commitment required of a CASA volunteer involved in a case and the performance expectations, review of the case assignment process and procedures, differentiation between the role of the CASA volunteer and other child welfare system personnel, and a comprehensive list of resources available and when and how to utilize these resources;
 - 2. The obligation of confidentiality in CASA-related matters, proper recordkeeping techniques, and the scope of state and federal statutes on the confidentiality of records;
 - 3. The dynamics of cultural diversity and the development of cultural sensitivity by the CASA volunteer;
 - 4. The nature of child abuse and neglect, the impact of drugs and alcohol on the incidence of abuse, identification of the family conditions and patterns which lead to and perpetuate abuse and neglect, and instruction on how local departments of social services respond to and assess reports of abuse and neglect;
 - 5. The general principles and concepts of child and family development;

- 6. Concepts of separation and loss, the role of foster care and permanency planning in the context of state law with consideration of the state's position on family preservation, family reunification and alternative permanent plans for a child who cannot be returned to the home;
- 7. Basic communication and interview skills, with guidelines for dealing with sensitive issues and the interaction between the CASA volunteer and parties to a case, and practice in conducting interviews and writing reports;
- 8. The juvenile court process which should include an outline of the various types of court proceedings, what transpires at each proceeding, the CASA volunteer's role, who to contact when there is a question about the court process, a glossary of legal terminology, how to prepare for a hearing, and how to prepare a report for the court;
- 9. The development of advocacy skills, such as negotiation and conflict management, and how they may be used by the CASA volunteer to improve the conditions for a child; and
- 10. The development of a general understanding of the codes of ethics of other professionals with whom the CASA volunteer will be working.
- C. The initial training program shall provide an opportunity for the volunteer to observe actual court proceedings similar to those in which he would be involved as a CASA volunteer. This observation is above and beyond the hours included in the initial training.
- D. CASA volunteers in training should be provided an opportunity to visit community agencies and institutions relevant to their work as a volunteer.
- E. The CASA program shall provide volunteers in training with the following written materials:
 - 1. Copies of pertinent laws, regulations, and policies;
 - 2. A statement of commitment form clearly stating the minimum expectations of the volunteer once trained; and
 - 3. A training manual which is easy to update and revise.
- F. Trainers and faculty for the initial training program and any ongoing training or continuing education shall be persons with substantial knowledge, training and experience in the subject matter which they present and should also be competent in the provision of technical training to lay persons.
- G. CASA program staff and others responsible for the initial training program should be attentive to the participation and progress of each trainee and be able to objectively evaluate his abilities according to criteria developed by the CASA program for that purpose. CASA directors should use the Comprehensive Training Curriculum for CASA from the NCASAA and training curricula developed within the state as a reference in designing and developing their training program.
- H. The CASA program shall make available a minimum of 12 hours of in-service training annually for volunteers who are accepted into the program. These in-service programs should

be designed and presented to maintain and improve the volunteer's level of knowledge and skill. Special attention shall be given to informing volunteers of changes in the law, local court procedures, the practices of other agencies involved, CASA program policies and developments in the fields of child development, child abuse and child advocacy.

I. CASA volunteers shall complete 12 hours of continuing education annually as approved by the director. This continuing education may be in-service programs provided directly by the CASA program, or in conjunction with another agency or agencies, or may be through an outside agency, through print or electronic media, or from other sources. All training not conducted or sponsored by the CASA program must be reviewed and approved by the CASA director for its suitability for the continuing education of CASA volunteers, and the amount of continuing education credit that is appropriate.